

# Housing and Community Development Block Grant Action Plan

Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2017 Local Fiscal Year (FY) 2018

Submitted to

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

June 15, 2017

Prepared by:

Department of Planning and Zoning Community Development Division

# City of Annapolis

Housing and Community Development Block Grant Action Plan

# Mayor

# Michael J. Pantelides

# **City Council**

Joe Budge, Ward One Frederick M. Paone, Ward Two Rhonda Pindell Charles, Ward Three Sheila M. Finlayson, Ward Four Jared Littmann, Ward Five Kenneth A. Kirby, Ward Six Ian Pfeiffer, Ward Seven Ross H. Arnett, III, Ward Eight

# **Director, Department of Planning and Zoning**

C. Peter Gutwald, AICP

For more information contact:

Department of Planning and Zoning Community Development Division 145 Gorman Street 3<sup>rd</sup> Floor Annapolis, Maryland 21401 410-263-7961

# Housing and Community Development Committee

Joe Budge, Ward One

Jared Littmann, Ward Five

Kenneth A. Kirby, Ward Six

Jacqueline Wells, Housing Authority

Theresa Von Adelung Bond

**Community Development Administrator** 

Theresa C. Wellman

# **Table of Contents**

Executive Summary	1
AP-05 Executive Summary - 24 CFR 91.200(c), 91.220(b)	1
The Process	6
PR-05 Lead & Responsible Agencies 24 CFR 91.200(b)	6
AP-10 Consultation - 91.100, 91.200(b), 91.215(I)	
AP-12 Citizen Participation	
Annual Action Plan	
AP-15 Expected Resources – 91.220(c)(1,2)	17
AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives	
AP-35 Projects – 91.220(d)	23
AP-38 Project Summary	25
AP-50 Geographic Distribution – 91.220(f)	
AP-55 Affordable Housing – 91.220(g)	
AP-60 Public Housing – 91.220(h)	34
AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities – 91.220(i)	38
AP-75 Barriers to Affordable Housing – 91.220(j)	44
AP-85 Other Actions – 91.220(k)	47
AP-90 Program Specific Requirements – 91.220(I)(1,2,4)	51



# **Executive Summary**

# AP-05 Executive Summary - 24 CFR 91.200(c), 91.220(b)

# 1. Introduction

The City of Annapolis, Maryland is an entitlement community under the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development's (HUD's) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program. In compliance with HUD regulations, the City of Annapolis has prepared this Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 20172018 Annual Action Plan for the period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018. This plan is a strategic plan for implementing the City's CDBG Program for housing, community, and economic development activities outlined in the City's Five Year Consolidated Plan. The Community Development Division of the Planning and Zoning Department is the administering agency of the CDBG program for the City of Annapolis.

The Five Year Consolidated Plan establishes the City's goals for the next five (5) year period and outlines the specific initiatives the City will undertake to address its needs and objectives by promoting: the rehabilitation and construction of affordable, decent, safe, accessible, and sound housing; homeownership, homeless prevention, rapid rehousing, operations and support services; creating a suitable living environment; public and community facility improvements; infrastructure; public safety; revitalization; promoting fair housing; improving public services; expanding economic opportunities; and principally benefitting low- and moderate-income persons. These goals form the basis of this Annual Action Plan, which allocates the city's FFY 2017 resources to address the needs of the city's low and moderate-income residents.

This Five Year Consolidated Plan was written as a collaborative effort of the City of Annapolis, Anne Arundel County, the community at large, social service agencies, housing providers, community development agencies, and economic development groups. The planning process was accomplished through a series of public meetings, stakeholder interviews, resident surveys, statistical data, and review of the City's Comprehensive Plan and other community plans.

# 2. Summary of the objectives and outcomes identified in the Plan

The following six (6) priorities and subsequent goals/strategies have been identified for the City of Annapolis for the period of FFY 2017 for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program. These priorities were based on a needs assessment, market analysis, and information gained through the public participation process.

# A. HOUSING PRIORITY – (High Priority)

Increase the amount of decent, safe, sound, and accessible housing for homeowners, renters, and homebuyers that is affordable to low- and moderate-income persons and families by improving the quality of the existing housing stock and increasing the supply of affordable housing.

Goals	Strategies	
HS-1 Housing	Continue to provide financial assistance to low- and moderate-income	
Rehabilitation	homeowners to rehabilitate their existing owner-occupied housing.	
HS-2 Rental	Provide support to affordable housing developers/owners to rehabilitate	
Rehabilitation	housing units that are rented to low- and moderate-income tenants.	
HS-3 Housing	Increase the supply of decent, safe, sound, and accessible housing that is	
Construction	affordable to owners and renters in the community through rehabilitation of	
	vacant buildings and new construction.	
HS-5 Home	Assist low- and moderate-income households to become homeowners by	
Ownership	providing down payment assistance, closing cost assistance, and requiring	
	housing counseling training.	
HS-6 Public	Support the local public housing authority in its efforts to improve and	
Housing	maintain the existing public housing communities, and promote	
	homeownership programs using Section 8 Vouchers for home purchase.	

## **B. HOMELESS PRIORITY – (High Priority)**

Provide housing and support services for homeless persons, and persons who are at-risk of becoming homeless.

Goals	Strategies
HO-1 Support the	Support the local CoC's efforts to provide emergency shelter, transitional
Continuum of Care	housing, and permanent supportive housing to persons and families who are
(CoC)	homeless or who are at risk of becoming homeless.
HO-2 Homeless	Assist providers in the operation of housing and support services for the
Operation/Support	homeless and persons at-risk of becoming homeless.
HO-3 Prevention	Continue to support the prevention of homelessness and programs for Rapid
and Housing	Re-Housing.
HO-4 Permanent	Support the development of permanent supportive housing for homeless
Housing	individuals and families.

## C. OTHER SPECIAL NEEDS PRIORITY - (High Priority)

*Provide affordable housing, services, and facilities for persons with special needs and the disabled.* 

Goals	Strategies	
SN-1 Housing	Increase the supply of affordable, decent, safe, sound, and accessible housing	
	for the elderly, persons with disabilities, and persons with other special needs	
	through rehabilitation of existing buildings and new construction.	
SN-2 Accessibility Improve the accessibility of renter occupied housing by making reasonabl		
	accommodations for the physically disabled.	

# D. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PRIORITY – (High Priority)

*Improve the public and community facilities, infrastructure, public services, and the quality of life for all residents in the community.* 

Goals	Strategies	
CD-1 Community	Support improvement or construction of public facilities serving low and	
Facilities	moderate-income neighborhoods.	
CD-2 Public	Support Vital Public Services concerned with assisting children and youth,	
Services	providing persons with office skills training and job training, providing persons	
	with information and referral and other services that promote family stability and	
	self-sufficiency.	

## E. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PRIORITY – (High Priority)

*Increase employment and economic empowerment of low and moderate-income residents in the community.* 

Goals	Strategies
ED-1 Employment	Support job creation and economic development by assisting microenterprises.

## F. ADMINISTRATION, PLANNING, AND MANAGEMENT PRIORITY - (High Priority)

Implement planning, administration, management, oversight of federal, state, and locally funded programs, and promoting fair housing.

Goals	Strategies
AM-1 Overall	Provide program management and oversight for the successful administration of
Coordination	Federal, state, and local funded programs, including planning services for special
	studies, environmental clearance, fair housing, and compliance with all Federal,
	state, and local laws and regulations.

# 3. Evaluation of Past Performance

According to HUD's 2016 End-of the Year Review letter, the City administered its CDBG program funding in a timely manner, in a manner consistent with the Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan, and in substantial compliance with program requirements. The City has no outstanding A-133 or OIG audit findings. HUD accepted the City's certification to affirmatively further fair housing. There are no open compliance issues concerning other FHEO areas, Part 58 compliance, Davis Bacon compliance or other Federal requirements.

The City's Annual Action Plan (AAP) for Program Year (PY) 2015 was consistent with the goals and objectives established in the five-year plan, which addresses the City's housing, and community development needs. The PY 2015 AAP included the following key priority goals and objectives:

- Provide for additional affordable housing to address the growing gap between housing costs and local incomes;
- Provide programs that improve recreation facilities and services particularly in low-income areas;
- Provide a network of shelter, housing and support services to prevent homelessness, move the homeless to permanent housing and independence and to eliminate chronic homelessness;
- Provide programs that promote economic development, create decent jobs and increase the job skills level of potential employees; and
- Provide supportive services that increase the ability of seniors, persons with disabilities and others with special needs to live.

HUD's review of the City's most recently submitted CAPER determined that Annapolis followed its fiveyear plan and the FFY 2015 Annual Action Plan. The activities undertaken during the year were consistent with the goals, objectives, and priorities established in the five-year Consolidated Plan.

# 4. Summary of citizen participation process and consultation process

The City of Annapolis has followed its Citizen Participation Plan in the planning and preparation of the AAP by holding three (3) public hearings and a 30-day comment period. The first public hearing on the needs of the community and its residents was held on November 15, 2016. This provided the residents, agencies, and organizations with the opportunity to discuss the City's CDBG Program and to provide suggestions for future CDBG Program priorities and activities.

A copy of the "Draft FFY 2017 Annual Action Plan" was placed on public display for review by the general public agencies and organizations in the community. A newspaper notice announcing that these documents were placed on public display was published in the "Capital Gazette," the newspaper of general circulation in the area. The "Draft FFY 2017 Annual Action Plan" was on public display from May 5, 2017 until June 5, 2017 at the following locations:

- City of Annapolis Department of Planning and Zoning, 145 Gorman Street, 3rd Floor, Annapolis, Maryland 21401
- HACA, 1217 Madison Street, Annapolis, MD 21403
- Anne Arundel County Public Library, 1410 West Street, Annapolis, MD 21401
- City of Annapolis website, Annapolis.gov

# 5. Summary of public comments

The City of Annapolis held its first public hearing on November 15, 2016 at 7:30 PM. No comments were received at that public hearing. A second public hearing was held on February 21, 2017 to solicit information on low and moderate-income community needs. Representatives from respective programs and organizations that provide services to low and moderate income persons made presentations to the Housing and Community Development Committee on their respective programs.

The FFY 2017 Annual Action Plan was placed on public display from May 5, 2017 to June 5, 2017. The city did not receive any comments. A third public Hearing was held on May 16, 2017. The City did not receive any comments.

# 6. Summary of comments or views not accepted and the reasons for not accepting them

All comments and views were accepted.

#### 7. Summary

The main goals of the Five Year Consolidated Plan are to improve the living conditions of all residents in the City of Annapolis, create a suitable and sustainable living environment, and to address the housing and community development needs of the City's residents.

The AAP is a single document which outlines the City's strategies and goals to address housing needs; establish and maintain a suitable living environment; and to encourage economic opportunities for every resident. The City will use the AAP Plan goals to allocate CDBG funds over the next year and to provide direction to its strategic partners, participating agencies, and stakeholder organizations to address the housing and community development needs of the low and moderate-income residents of the City of Annapolis. HUD will evaluate the City's performance based on the goals established in the AAP.

# The Process

# PR-05 Lead & Responsible Agencies 24 CFR 91.200(b)

# **1.** Describe agency/entity responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those responsible for administration of each grant program and funding source.

The following are the agencies/entities responsible for preparing the AAP and those responsible for administration of each grant program and funding source.

#### Table 1 – Responsible Agencies

Agency Role	Name	Department/Agency
City Of Annapolis	<b>Community Development Administrator</b>	Planning and Zoning

#### Narrative

The City of Annapolis' Planning and Zoning Department Community Development Division is the administrating agency for the CDBG program. This Division prepares the Five Year Consolidated Plans, Annual Action Plans, Environmental Review Records (ERR's), the Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Reports (CAPER), monitoring, pay requests, contracting, and oversight of the programs on a day-to-day basis.

## **Consolidated Plan Public Contact Information**

Theresa C. Wellman
<b>Community Development Administrato</b>
City of Annapolis
Planning and Zoning Department
145 Gorman Street
Annapolis, MD 21401
410-263-7961 x 7798
tcw@annapolis.gov

# AP-10 Consultation - 91.100, 91.200(b), 91.215(l)

# 1. Introduction

The City of Annapolis has sole responsibility for formulating and administering its community development, housing, and economic development programs. The City interacts with various public and non-profit institutions that provide housing and supportive services to low and moderate income residents. Although the agencies are independent of one another, they work together to ensure that their programs and services are coordinated and that residents are served. The City's primary means of connecting and networking with housing and service providers in Annapolis is through the following organizations:

- Annapolis and Anne Arundel County Partnership to End Homelessness (bi-monthly)
- Anne Arundel Affordable Housing Coalition (quarterly)
- City Housing and Community Development Committee (monthly)
- Arundel Community Development Services (ACDS) (weekly)
- Housing Authority of the City of Annapolis (HACA) (weekly)
- Community Action Agency (monthly)
- Anne Arundel County Department of Social Services (DSS) (monthly)
- Light House Shelter (weekly)
- Arundel Community Development Services, Inc. (weekly)

The Community Development Administrator is available to offer technical assistance and assistance with developing applications for funding. The City will provide strong leadership and planning to coordinate activities and functions and facilitate communication between City departments and its staff. Through public meetings and hearings on projects and applications for funding, the City of Annapolis will continue to provide a forum where private and public entities can discuss community development, housing, and other issues. The City will consider its activities in relation to federal, state, and county agencies to ensure that all available programs are taken into account. The City will consider opportunities to work with county and local non-profit agencies to coordinate efforts to provide necessary services. These coordinated efforts will provide affordable housing opportunities to low- and moderate-income persons.

HACA is an important housing provider primarily assisting extremely low-income households. The Mayor appoints HACA's Board and the Chairman of the Board or his/her designee is a member of the City's Housing and Community Development Committee. HACA hires its own staff and handles all its contracting, procurement, and management issues. Consultation with HACA occurred to obtain data on the public housing inventory and the Section 8/Housing Choice Voucher Program and to discuss HACA's plans for public housing development activities.

The Community Development Administrator is a member of the Anne Arundel and Annapolis Coalition to End Homelessness/CoC Board of Directors. The CoC is a 501(C) (3).

# Provide a concise summary of the jurisdiction's activities to enhance coordination between public and assisted housing providers and private and governmental health, mental health and service agencies (91.215(I)).

The City of Annapolis works with the following agencies to enhance coordination:

- City of Annapolis Planning and Zoning Department Oversees the CDBG Program.
- HACA Coordination with the Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers and improvements to public housing communities
- Social Services Agencies Provides funds to improve services to low and moderate income persons.
- Housing Providers Provides funds to rehabilitate and develop affordable housing and provide housing opportunities for low and moderate-income households.
- Anne Arundel County Continuum of Care Oversees the Continuum of Care funds.

Each year, as part of the CDBG application planning process, local agencies, and organizations are invited to submit proposals for CDBG funds for eligible activities. These groups participate in the planning process by attending the public hearings, and informational meetings.

# Describe coordination with the Continuum of Care and efforts to address the needs of homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans, and unaccompanied youth) and persons at risk of homelessness

The City of Annapolis is a member of the Anne Arundel County Continuum of Care (CoC). The CoC, called the Anne Arundel County and Annapolis Coalition to End Homelessness (Homeless Coalition) includes representatives from (i) the State, County, and City of Annapolis agencies administering mainstream resources; (ii) shelter and nonprofit services providers; (iii) organizations representing individuals diagnosed with mental health disorders, substance abuse, HIV/AIDS; and (iv) formerly homeless persons, advocates, and others with roles, interests and responsibilities in addressing issues associated with homelessness in the County. The Coalition meets monthly and develops policies and procedures for operations, including the adoption of a Governance Charter.

The goals and strategies developed by the Homeless Coalition and its planning process served as the basis for the homeless goals within the strategic plan. The Homeless Coalition was an active participant in reviewing and finalizing all of the goals and strategies outlined in this Consolidated Plan. The City's Community Development Division is an active member of the Homeless Coalition and serves on the board of directors.

# Describe consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care that serves the jurisdiction's area in determining how to allocate ESG funds, develop performance standards and evaluate outcomes, and develop funding, policies and procedures for the administration of HMIS

Although the City is not a direct recipient of Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funds, it competes for ESG funding through the Maryland Department of Housing and Community Development's (DHCD) ESG program. DHCD awarded the City \$128,371 in FFY 2016 in ESG operating funds for the Light House Emergency Shelter. The City has applied for \$145,000 in ESG funds on May 12, 2017.

The City of Annapolis participates in the Anne Arundel County Continuum of Care Program, which administers the Continuum of Care Programs, the Supportive Housing Program, and the ShelterPlus Program. The Homeless Coalition is responsible for funding decisions that affect residents of Annapolis. In compliance with HUD mandate, the Homeless Coalition developed a Homeless Management Information System (HMIS). Many agencies in Anne Arundel County, which offer housing and services to people who are homeless, participate in this data system. It helps homeless agencies collaborate, coordinate care, and manage services. The value of this data system is to produce an unduplicated count of homeless persons, understand patterns of service use, and measure the effectiveness of homeless programs in Anne Arundel County.

2. Describe Agencies, groups, organizations and others who participated in the process and describe the jurisdictions consultations with housing, social service agencies and other entities.

1	Agency/Group/Organization	OIC
	Agency/Group/Organization Type	Services-Education
	What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Need Assessment Public Housing Needs Homelessness Strategy Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless Homeless Needs - Families with children Homelessness Needs - Veterans Non-Homeless Special Needs Economic Development Anti-poverty Strategy
	How was the Agency/Group/Organization consulted and what are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	OIC was consulted for information regarding housing and community development in the City of Annapolis.
2	Agency/Group/Organization	Anne Arundel County Community Action Agency
	Agency/Group/Organization Type	Services - Housing Services-Education
	What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Need Assessment Public Housing Needs Homelessness Strategy Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless Homeless Needs - Families with children Homelessness Needs - Veterans Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth Economic Development Anti-poverty Strategy

# Table 2 – Agencies, groups, organizations who participated

	How was the Agency/Group/Organization consulted and what are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	Anne Arundel County Community Action Agency was consulted for information regarding housing and community development in the City of Annapolis.
3	Agency/Group/Organization	Anne Arundel Department of Social Services
	Agency/Group/Organization Type	Services - Housing Services-Children Services-Elderly Persons Services-Persons with Disabilities Services-Persons with HIV/AIDS Services-Victims of Domestic Violence Services-homeless Services-Health Services-Health Services-Education Services-Employment Services - Victims Other government - County
	What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Need Assessment Public Housing Needs Homelessness Strategy Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless Homeless Needs - Families with children Homelessness Needs - Veterans Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth Non-Homeless Special Needs Economic Development Anti-poverty Strategy
	How was the Agency/Group/Organization consulted and what are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	The Department was consulted for information regarding housing and community development in the City of Annapolis.
4	Agency/Group/Organization	Center of Help, Inc.
	Agency/Group/Organization Type	Services - Housing Services-Children Services-Elderly Persons Services-Persons with Disabilities Services-homeless Services-Health Services-Education Services-Employment Service-Fair Housing

	What section of the Plan was addressed by	Housing Need Assessment
	Consultation?	Economic Development
		Anti-poverty Strategy
		Hispanic/Latino issues
	How was the Agency/Group/Organization consulted and what are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	Center of Help/Centro de Ayuda was consulted for information regarding housing and community development in the City of Annapolis.
5	Agency/Group/Organization	Light House Inc
	Agency/Group/Organization Type	Housing Services - Housing Services-Children Services-Elderly Persons Services-Persons with Disabilities Services-Persons with HIV/AIDS Services-Victims of Domestic Violence Services-homeless Services-Health Services-Education Services-Employment
	What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Need Assessment Public Housing Needs Homelessness Strategy Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless Homeless Needs - Families with children Homelessness Needs - Veterans Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth Non-Homeless Special Needs Economic Development Anti-poverty Strategy
	How was the Agency/Group/Organization consulted and what are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	Light House was consulted for information regarding housing and community development in the City of Annapolis.
6	Agency/Group/Organization	Newtowne Community Development Corporation
	Agency/Group/Organization Type	Employment
		Neighborhood Organization

	What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? How was the Agency/Group/Organization	Housing Need Assessment Public Housing Needs Homelessness Strategy Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless Homeless Needs - Families with children Homelessness Needs - Veterans Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth Non-Homeless Special Needs Economic Development Market Analysis Anti-poverty Strategy Newtowne CDC was consulted for information
	consulted and what are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	regarding housing and community development in the City of Annapolis.
7	Agency/Group/Organization	ACDS
	Agency/Group/Organization Type	Services - Housing Services-homeless Planning organization CoC lead agency.
	What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Homelessness Strategy Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless Homeless Needs - Families with children Homelessness Needs - Veterans Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth Anti-poverty Strategy
	How was the Agency/Group/Organization consulted and what are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	ACDS was consulted for information regarding housing and community development in the City of Annapolis.
8	Agency/Group/Organization	Housing Authority of the City of Annapolis
	Agency/Group/Organization Type	РНА
	What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Need Assessment Public Housing Needs Economic Development Anti-poverty Strategy
	How was the Agency/Group/Organization consulted and what are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	HACA was consulted for information regarding housing and community development in the City of Annapolis.
9	Agency/Group/Organization	Anne Arundel Partnership for Children, Youth, and Families

Agency/Group/Organization Type	Services - Housing Services-Children Services-homeless Services-Health Services-Employment
What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Need Assessment Public Housing Needs Economic Development Anti-poverty Strategy
How was the Agency/Group/Organization consulted and what are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	The Partnership was consulted for information regarding housing and community development in the City of Annapolis.
Agency/Group/Organization	Bowman Community Development Corp.
Agency/Group/Organization Type	Planning organization Neighborhood Organization
What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Need Assessment Public Housing Needs Homelessness Strategy Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless Homeless Needs - Families with children Homelessness Needs - Veterans Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth Economic Development Anti-poverty Strategy
Agency/Group/Organization	Maryland Department of the Environment
Agency/Group/Organization Type	Other government - State
What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Lead-based Paint Strategy
How was the Agency/Group/Organization consulted and what are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	MD Dept. of Environment was consulted for information regarding LBP.
	What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?   How was the Agency/Group/Organization consulted and what are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?   Agency/Group/Organization   Agency/Group/Organization Type   What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?   Agency/Group/Organization Type   What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?   Agency/Group/Organization   Agency/Group/Organization   How was the Agency/Group/Organization Type   What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?   How was the Agency/Group/Organization Type   What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?   How was the Agency/Group/Organization consulted and what are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for

# Identify any Agency Types not consulted and provide rationale for not consulting.

All agency types were consulted and contacted during the planning process.

Name of Plan	Lead Organization	How do the goals of your Strategic Plan overlap with
		the goals of each plan?
Continuum of Care	Anne Arundel and	The Anne Arundel and Annapolis Coalition to End
	Annapolis Coalition To	Homelessness CoC is the primary provider of housing
	End Homelessness	and supportive services for the City of Annapolis
	CoC	homeless and at risk of being homeless population. The
		goals of the City and the CoC are complementary.
2017 PHA Annual	Housing Authority of	The Housing Authority of the City of Annapolis is the lead
and Five Year Plan	the City of Annapolis	agency providing public housing assistance and Section 8
		vouchers in the City of Annapolis. The goals of the City
		and HACA are complementary.
2009	City of Annapolis	The 2009 Comprehensive Plan was developed by the City
Comprehensive		to chart the City's direction for the next ten years,
Plan		respond to relevant State law, and replace the 1998
		Comprehensive Plan. The goals of the plans are
		complementary.

# Other local/regional/state/federal planning efforts considered when preparing the Plan

Table 3 – Other local / regional / federal planning efforts

# Describe cooperation and coordination with other public entities, including the State and any adjacent units of general local government, in the implementation of the Consolidated Plan (91.215(I))

The City of Annapolis Community Development Division is the lead planning and administrating agency for the City's CDBG program. Close coordination is maintained between the Division and other City departments to ensure the needs for affordable housing and community development are being met.

Cooperation extends beyond the City limits to the county and state level. Communication between the City's CDBG program and the County's CDBG program exist to ensure activities are coordinated and efficiently utilize federal funds. In addition, the City is a member of the CoC and applies for state ESG funds for organizations with the CoC. The City of Annapolis also applies for Community Legacy, Strategic Demolition and Maryland Housing Rehabilitation Program funds through the Maryland Department of Housing and Community Development.

# Narrative (optional):

# **AP-12** Participation

# 1. Summary of citizen participation process/Efforts made to broaden citizen participation

#### Summarize citizen participation process and how it impacted goal-setting

The City of Annapolis has followed its Citizen Participation Plan in the planning and preparation of the AAP. Three public hearings were held to discuss and assess the housing and community needs of the City and its residents.

The City held its first public hearing on the needs of the community and its residents on November 17, 2015. This provided the residents, agencies, and organizations with the opportunity to discuss the City's CDBG Program and to provide suggestions for future CDBG Program priorities and activities.

A copy of the FFY 2017 Annual Action Plan" was placed on public display for review by the general public agencies and organizations in the community. A newspaper notice announcing that these documents were placed on public display was published in the "Capital Gazette," the newspaper of general circulation in the area. The "Draft FFY 2017 Annual Action Plan" was on public display from May 5, 2017 to June 5, 2017 at the following locations:

- City of Annapolis Department of Planning and Zoning, 145 Gorman Street, 3rd Floor, Annapolis, Maryland 21401
- HACA, 1217 Madison Street, Annapolis, MD 21403
- Anne Arundel County Public Library, 1410 West Street, Annapolis, MD 21401
- City's website, Annapolis.gov

The FFY 2017 Annual Action Plan was developed in conjunction with residents and organizations through the City's public participation process. Specific actions taken to encourage citizen participation during the development of the FFY 2017 Annual Action Plan were public meetings and consultations.

# **Citizen Participation Outreach**

Sort	Mode	Target of	Summary of	Summary of	Summary of	URL (If
Order	of Outreach	Outreach	response/ attendance	Comments received	comments not accepted	applicable)
					and reasons	
1	Public Hearing	Minorities, Persons with disabilities, Non- targeted/ broad community, Residents of Public and Assisted	A public hearing was held on November 17, 2015 to discuss the City progress in addressing its goals.	No comments were received	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
2	Public Hearing	Housing Minorities, Persons with disabilities, Non- targeted/ broad community, Residents of Public and Assisted Housing	A public hearing was held on February 21, 2017 to discuss the proposed projects for the Annual Action Plan.	Meeting minutes can be found on the City's web page annapolis.gov	All comments were accepted.	Not Applicable
3	Public Hearing	Minorities, Persons with disabilities, Non- targeted/ broad community, Residents of Public and Assisted Housing	A public hearing was held on May 16, 2017 to discuss the Annual Action Plan,	Meeting minutes can be found on the City's web page annapolis.gov	No comments were received.	Not Applicable

Table 4 – Citizen Participation Outreach

# **Annual Action Plan**

# AP-15 Expected Resources – 91.220(c)(1,2) Introduction

The City of Annapolis is expecting to receive \$249,088 from CDBG funds for the FFY 2018 program year. At this time, HUD has not allocated its FFY 2017 CDBG funds. All proposed activities budgets will be proportionally increased or decreased from the estimated funding levels to match actual allocation amounts. The program year is July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018.

The accomplishments of these projects/activities will be reported in the FFY 2017 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER).

Program	Source	Uses of Funds	Expected An	nount Avail	able Year 1		Expected	Narrative
	of Funds		Annual Allocation: \$	Program Income: \$	Prior Year Resources: \$	Total: \$	Amount Available Reminder of ConPlan \$	Description
CDBG	public federal	Acquisition Admin and Planning Economic Development Housing Public Improvements Public Services	249,088	18,000		249,088		Funding will be allocated to various local projects. The City expects to expend all this year's allocation within the current 5 yr. consolidated Plan

# **Anticipated Resources**

Table 5 - Expected Resources – Priority Table

# Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how matching requirements will be satisfied.

To leverage additional funds from other sources and work toward meeting the goals and objectives of the City of Annapolis Annual Action Plan, the City works with many partners including the county government, the state, nonprofit organizations and other companies and agencies who are able to bring additional resources to desired projects and programs.

During the Consolidated Plan period, the City and its partners will focus on the following potential sources of leveraged funds:

- ESG from the Maryland Department of Housing and Community Development
- Maryland Housing Rehabilitation funds and Lead Paint funds for the City's Housing

**Rehabilitation Program** 

- Low Income Housing Tax Credits
- Anne Arundel County Continuum of Care (CoC)
- Strategic Demolition Program Community Legacy Program
- Technical Assistance Program
- HOME Initiatives Program
- Maryland Affordable Housing Trust
- Strategic Demolition Program
- Habitat for Humanity

# If appropriate, describe publically owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that may be used to address the needs identified in the plan.

Not applicable

#### Discussion

The city will continue to explore options to leverage its CDBG funds to provide the highest and best use of project/activity funding to address the housing, community development, and economic development needs of the city. The city considers its CDBG allocation as one tool in a toolbox to be used by the city to provide decent housing, a suitable living environment, and expand economic opportunities for low- and moderate-income persons. The following additional financial resources will be utilized by the city:

## Federal Resources

## Section 8

HACA expects to receive \$3,952,657 in Tenant Based Rental Assistance and \$624,000 in Project Based Assistance in FFY 2017.

## LIHTC

The Federal Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (Tax Credit) was created by the Tax-Reform Act of 1986 and extended by the revenue Reconciliation Acts of 1989 and 1992 to encourage the private sector to invest in the construction and rehabilitation of housing for low and moderate-income families. The law gives states an annual tax credit allocation based on population. Tax Credits are awarded on a competitive basis to nonprofit and for-profit sponsors of eligible housing projects. Awards are based on the criteria outlined in the State's Allocation Plan. Projects financed with tax-exempt bonds may be eligible for Tax Credits outside of the competitive process. Project sponsors or investors claim the Tax Credit on their federal income tax return.

DHCD awarded Pirhl Development \$15,748,425 LIHTC for Town Court, a 42 unit affordable housing development on West Street in Annapolis. Pirhl will set aside eight units for the disabled and two units for homeless persons. Rents will be targeted to households at 30%, 40%, 50%, and 60% of Area Median Income. Among the 34 three-bedroom units, five units will have no income restrictions.

#### **McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act Funds**

The McKinney Act consists of several programs that provide a range of services to homeless people, including the Continuum of Care Programs the Supportive Housing Program, the Shelter Plus Care Program, and the Emergency Solutions Grant Program. The City of Annapolis participates in the Anne Arundel County Continuum of Care Program, which administers the Continuum of Care Programs, the Supportive Housing Program, and the Shelter Plus Program.

Anne Arundel County applied through HUD's federal competitive application process and was awarded \$2,303,378 in competitive Continuum of Care (CoC) funds. Specifically, in CoC funds were awarded in order to continue funding permanent supportive housing programs and will be used to fund.

Although the City is not a direct recipient of Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funds, it competes for ESG funding through DHCD's ESG program. DHCD awarded the City \$128,371 in FFY 2016 in ESG operating funds for the Light House Emergency Shelter. The City will apply for ESG funds in July 2017 and hopes to receive a similar award for FFY 2017.

#### State Resources

#### **Community Legacy Funds (DHCD)**

The City will seek FY 2018 Community Legacy funds in July to continue its revitalization efforts in the Clay Street neighborhood.

#### **HOME Initiatives**

The state DHCD opened its HOME Initiative Program for FY 2017 only to CHDOs.

## Maryland Housing Rehabilitation Program (DHCD)

The City has an agreement with Arundel Community Development Services (ACDS) to administer the Maryland Housing Rehabilitation Program-Single Family for the city. The purpose of this program is to preserve and improve single-family properties and one-to-four unit rental properties. MHRP-SF is a program designed to bring properties up to applicable building codes and standards. Arundel Community Development Services, Inc. (ACDS), which administers the City's Housing Rehabilitation Program, leverages approximately three annually for Annapolis owner occupied property rehabilitation.

#### Multifamily Rental Program (DHCD)

The State awarded \$1,680,000 in State funding to build Town Court, 42 units of affordable housing.

## **Rental Allowance Program (DHCD)**

The Rental Allowance Program (RAP) provides monthly rent assistance for low-income families who are homeless or have an emergency housing need. The monthly payments are fixed amounts, depending upon the size of the family and the location of the rental-housing unit in the State. Payments can be

received for up to 12 months, and may be extended under special circumstances. The Anne Arundel County Community Action Agency expects to receive approximately \$25,895 from the State in FY 2018.

#### **County Programs**

City residents also participate in Anne Arundel County's Homeownership Counseling Program and the County's Mortgage Assistance Program. The County's Homeownership Counseling Program helps prepare low and moderate-income renters for homeownership. The County uses CDBG and general funds for the program. The County also provides up to \$25,000 of mortgage assistance to low and moderate income first-time homebuyers.

#### Local Programs

Each year the City Council provides operating funds through the City's General Fund to many city organizations. These are groups that display creative ways of helping people help themselves, provide activities that support the City's goal providing all residents with access to services that sustain and enhance the quality of life and are equitable, effective, accountable, and responsive to changing community needs. This year, the city will allocate approximately \$298,000 to fund organizations, many of which provide services to the city's low-income residents.

# AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives

# **Goals Summary Information**

# Table 6 – Goals Summary

Sort Order	Goal Name	Start Year	End Year	Category	Geographic Area	Needs Addressed	Funding	Goal Outcome Indicator
1	HS-1 Housing Rehabilitation	2017	2018	Affordable Housing	Citywide	Housing Priority	CDBG:	Homeowner Housing Rehabilitated: 3 Household Housing Units
2	HO-2 Operation/Support	2017	2018	Homeless	Citywide	Homeless Priority	CDBG:	Homelessness Prevention: 80 Persons Assisted
3	CD-2 Public Services	2017	2019	Non-Housing Community Development	Citywide	Community Development Priority	CDBG:	Public service activities other than Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit: 1752 Persons Assisted
4	ED-1 Employment	2017	2019	Non-Housing Community Development	Citywide	Economic Development Priority	CDBG:	Businesses assisted: 5 Businesses Assisted
5	CD-1 Community Facilities	2017	2019	Non-Housing Community Development	Citywide	Community Development Priority		Public Facility or Infrastructure Activities other than Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit: 66 Persons Assisted
6	SN-1 Housing	2017	2019	Non-Homeless Special Needs	Citywide	Other Special Needs Priority		Public Facility or Infrastructure Activities other than Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit: 12 Persons Assisted

# **Goal Descriptions**

	[	
1	Goal Name	HS-1 Housing Rehabilitation
	Goal Description	Continue to provide financial assistance to low- and moderate-income homeowners to rehabilitate their existing owner-occupied housing.
2	Goal Name	HO-2 Operation/Support
	Goal Description	Assist providers in the operation of housing and support services for the homeless and persons at-risk of becoming homeless.
3	Goal Name	SN-1 Housing
	Goal Description	Increase the supply of affordable, decent, safe, sound, and accessible housing for the elderly, persons with disabilities, and persons with other special needs through rehabilitation of existing buildings and new construction.
4	Goal Name	CD-1 Community Facilities
	Goal Description	Support improvement or construction of public facilities serving low and moderate- income neighborhoods.
5	Goal Name	CD-2 Public Services
	Goal Description	Support Vital Public Services concerned with assisting children and youth, providing persons with office skills training and job training, providing persons with information and referral and other services that promote family stability and self-sufficiency.
6	Goal Name	ED-1 Employment
	Goal Description	Support job creation and economic development by assisting microenterprises.

# AP-35 Projects – 91.220(d) Introduction

The City of Annapolis is proposing the following projects for its FFY 2017 Annual Action Plan:

# Projects

# Table 7 – Project Information

#	Project Name	
1	Blessed in Tech, Inc.	
2	Center of Help, Inc.	
3	The Light House, Inc.	
4	OIC of Anne Arundel County, Inc.	
5	Restoration Community Development Corporation, Inc.	
6	Samaritan House, Inc.	
7	Samaritan House, Inc. Capital	
8	Arundel Lodge, Inc.	
9	Anne Arundel County Community Action Agency, Inc.	
10	Organization of Hispanic/Latin Americans of Anne Arundel County	
11	Newtowne Community Development Corporation, Inc.	
12	Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program	
13	Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program Administration	
14	Main Street Housing	
15	Baltimore Neighborhoods, Inc.	

# Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved needs.

The intent of Federal CDBG funds is to provide low and moderate-income households with viable communities, including decent housing, a suitable living environment, and expanded economic opportunities. Eligible activities include community facilities and improvements, housing rehabilitation and preservation, affordable housing development activities, public services, economic development, planning, and administration. The City of Annapolis has identified its priorities throughout the plan with regard to allocating investment geographically.

The City will base its selection of projects on the following criteria:

- Meets the statutory requirements of the CDBG program
- Meets the needs of LMI residents
- Focuses on low and moderate-income areas or neighborhoods
- Coordinates and leverages resources
- Responds to expressed needs
- Is sustainable and/or has long-term impact; and
- Demonstrates measurable progress and success

# AP-38 Project Summary

# **Project Summary Information**

1	Project Name	Blessed in Tech Ministries, Inc.
	Target Area	Citywide
	Goals Supported	CD-2 Public Services
	Needs Addressed	Community Development Priority
	Funding	CDBG: \$2,500
	Description	Support Vital Public Services by providing life skills counseling including
	•	information and referral services, creation of Individual Development
		Plans, computer skills training and mentoring for homeless, first-time
		offenders, at risk youth, and other clients in need of the services
		provided by this organization.
	Target Date	6/30/2018
	Estimate the number	57 persons
	and type of families	
	that will benefit from	
	the proposed activities	
	Location Description	80 West Street
	Planned Activities	Matrix Code: 05 Public Services (General) 570.201(e)
		National Objective: LMC Low/mod limited clientele benefit: activities that
		benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income.
		570.208(a)(2)
2	Project Name	Center of Help, Inc.
	Target Area	Citywide
	Goals Supported	CD-2 Public Services
	Needs Addressed	Community Development Priority
	Funding	CDBG: \$8,500
	Description	Support Vital Public Services by providing persons with information and
		referral and other services that promote family stability and self-
		sufficiency for local Hispanic individuals and families in the Annapolis
		area.
	Target Date	6/30/2018
	Estimate the number	1,050 LMI persons
	and type of families	
	that will benefit from	
	the proposed activities	
	Location Description	1906 Forest Drive, Annapolis, MD
	Planned Activities	Matrix Code: 05 Public Services (General) 570.201(e)
		National Objective: LMC Low/mod limited clientele benefit: activities that
		benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income.
		570.208(a)(2)
3	Project Name	The Light House, Inc.
	Target Area	Citywide
	Goals Supported	HO-2 Operation/Support
	Needs Addressed	Homeless Priority

	Funding	CDBG: \$6,000
	Description	Assist providers in the operation of housing and support services for the homeless and persons at-risk of becoming homeless by providing case management services which include a comprehensive array of support services to homeless individuals and families, chronically homeless or those at risk of becoming homeless.
	Target Date	6/30/2018
	Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities	48 homeless persons
	Location Description	10 Hudson Street, Annapolis, MD
	Planned Activities	Matrix Code: 05 Public Services (General) 570.201(e)
	Trainica Activities	National Objective: LMC Presumed Benefit Low/mod limited clientele benefit: activities that benefit a clientele generally presumed to be principally low/mod persons. 570.208(a)(2)(i)(A)
4	Project Name	OIC of Anne Arundel County, Inc.
	Target Area	Citywide
	Goals Supported	CD-2 Public Services
	Needs Addressed	Community Development Priority
	Funding	CDBG: \$7,300
	Description	Support Vital Public Services by providing persons with office skills training and job training, and pre-vocational development including, ABE, ESOL, and marketable occupational skills programs to individuals in the Annapolis area.
	Target Date	6/30/2018
	Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from	16 LMI persons
	the proposed activities	
	Location Description	2600 Solomon's Island Road, Edgewater, MD
	Planned Activities	Matrix Code: 05H Employment Training 570.201(e)
		National Objective: LMC Low/mod limited clientele benefit: activities that benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)
5	Project Name	benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income.
5	Project Name Target Area	benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2) Restoration Community Development Corporation, Inc. Citywide
5	Target Area Goals Supported	benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2) Restoration Community Development Corporation, Inc.
5	Target Area	benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2) Restoration Community Development Corporation, Inc. Citywide
5	Target Area Goals Supported	benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2) Restoration Community Development Corporation, Inc. Citywide CD-2 Public Services
5	Target Area Goals Supported Needs Addressed	benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2) Restoration Community Development Corporation, Inc. Citywide CD-2 Public Services Community Development Priority

	Estimate the number	0 I Milvouth
		9 LMI youth
	and type of families	
	that will benefit from	
	the proposed activities	
	Location Description	Phoenix Academy, 1411 Cedar Park Road, Annapolis, MD
	Planned Activities	Matrix Code: 05D Youth Services 570.201(e)National Objective: LMC
		Low/mod limited clientele benefit: activities that benefit a limited
		clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)
6	Project Name	Samaritan Houses, Inc.
	Target Area	Citywide
	Goals Supported	CD-2 Public Services
	Needs Addressed	Community Development Priority
	Funding	CDBG: \$2,750
	Description	Support Vital Public Services by providing services that promote family
		stability and self-sufficiency through addictions counseling focusing on
		relapse prevention. Services also include referrals to mental health
		providers, workforce development programs, and nicotine cessation.
	Target Date	6/30/2018
	Estimate the number	22 homeless persons
		22 nomeness persons
	and type of families	
	that will benefit from	
	the proposed activities	
	Location Description	2610 Greenbriar Lane, Annapolis, MD
	Planned Activities	Matrix Code: 05F Substance Abuse 570.201(e)
		National Objective: LMC Low/mod limited clientele benefit: activities that
		benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income.
		570.208(a)(2)
7	Project Name	Samaritan Houses, Inc Capital
	Target Area	Citywide
	Goals Supported	CD-1 Community Facilities
	Needs Addressed	Community Development Priority
	Funding	CDBG: \$23,625
	Description	Support improvement or construction of public facilities serving low and
		moderate-income neighborhoods.
	Target Date	6/30/2018
	Estimate the number	66 persons
	and type of families	
	that will benefit from	
	the proposed activities	
	Location Description	2610 Greenbriar Lane, Annapolis, MD
	Planned Activities	Matrix Code: 03P-Health Facilities 570.201 (c)
	Fighted Activities	National Objective: LMC Low/mod limited clientele benefit: activities that
		-
		benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income.
		570.208(a)(2)
	Duele et Neur	A www.delladae.lue
8	Project Name	Arundel Lodge, Inc.
8	Project Name Target Area Goals Supported	Arundel Lodge, Inc. Citywide SN-1 Housing

	Needs Addressed	Other Special Needs Priority
	Funding	CDBG: \$25,100
	Description	Increase the supply of affordable, decent, safe, sound, and accessible housing for the elderly, persons with disabilities, and persons with other special needs through rehabilitation of existing buildings and new
		construction by improving four residential facilities occupied by 12
	Town Data	mentally ill individuals.
	Target Date	6/30/2018
	Estimate the number	12 persons with special needs
	and type of families that will benefit from	
	the proposed activities	Address suppressed
	Location Description Planned Activities	Address suppressed Matrix Code: 03B Handicapped Centers 570.201(c)
	Planneu Activities	National Objective: LMC Presumed Benefit Low/mod limited clientele
		benefit: activities that benefit a clientele generally presumed to be
		principally low/mod persons. 570.208(a)(2)(i)(A)
9	Project Name	Anne Arundel Community Action Agency, Inc.
5	Target Area	Citywide
	Goals Supported	CD-2 Public Services
	Needs Addressed	Community Development Priority
	Funding	CDBG: \$3,313
	Description	Support Vital Public Services by providing services that promote family
		stability and self-sufficiency by providing financial literacy, credit repair,
		financial planning, and homeownership training.
	Target Date	6/30/2018
	Estimate the number	45 persons
	and type of families	
	that will benefit from	
	the proposed activities	
	Location Description	251 West Street, Annapolis MD 21401
	Planned Activities	Matrix Code: 05 Public Services (General) 570.201(e)
		National Objective: LMC Low/mod limited clientele benefit: activities that
		benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)
10	Project Name	Organization of Hispanics/Latin Americans of Anne Arundel County
	Target Area	Citywide
	Goals Supported	CD-2 Public Services
	Needs Addressed	Community Development Priority
	Funding	CDBG: \$1,000
	Description	Support Vital Public Services by providing persons with information and
	•	referral and other services that promote family stability and self-
		sufficiency for local Hispanic individuals and families in the Annapolis
		area.
	Target Date	6/30/2018

Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities 850 LMI persons   Location Description 80 West Street, Annapolis, MD   Planned Activities Matrix Code: 05 Public Services (General) 570.201(e) National Objective: LMC Low/mod limited clientele benefit: activities th benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)   12 Project Name Newtowne Community Development Corporation, Inc.   Target Area Citywide   Goals Supported ED-1 Employment   Needs Addressed Economic Development Priority   Funding CDBG: \$3,000   Description Supporting job creation and economic development by assisting five microenterprises with legal, financial marketing and recordkeeping technical assistance   Target Date 6/30/2018   Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities 5 microbusinesses   Location Description 703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD   Planned Activities Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201 National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)   13 Project Name Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program - Construction	
that will benefit from the proposed activities 80 West Street, Annapolis, MD   Planned Activities Matrix Code: 05 Public Services (General) 570.201(e) National Objective: LMC Low/mod limited clientele benefit: activities th benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)   12 Project Name Newtowne Community Development Corporation, Inc.   Target Area Citywide   Goals Supported ED-1 Employment   Needs Addressed Economic Development Priority   Funding CDBG: \$3,000   Description Supporting job creation and economic development by assisting five microenterprises with legal, financial marketing and recordkeeping technical assistance   Target Date 6/30/2018   Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities 5 microbusinesses   Location Description 703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD   Planned Activities Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201 National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CER 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
the proposed activities     Location Description   80 West Street, Annapolis, MD     Planned Activities   Matrix Code: 05 Public Services (General) 570.201(e) National Objective: LMC Low/mod limited clientele benefit: activities th benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)     12   Project Name   Newtowne Community Development Corporation, Inc.     Target Area   Citywide     Goals Supported   ED-1 Employment     Needs Addressed   Economic Development Priority     Funding   CDBG: \$3,000     Description   Supporting job creation and economic development by assisting five microenterprises with legal, financial marketing and recordkeeping technical assistance     Target Date   6/30/2018     Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities   5 microbusinesses     Location Description   703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD     Planned Activities   Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201 National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprises microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
Location Description   80 West Street, Annapolis, MD     Planned Activities   Matrix Code: 05 Public Services (General) 570.201(e) National Objective: LMC Low/mod limited clientele benefit: activities th benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)     12   Project Name   Newtowne Community Development Corporation, Inc.     Target Area   Citywide   Goals Supported     Goals Supported   ED-1 Employment   Needs Addressed     Funding   CDBG: \$3,000   Supporting job creation and economic development by assisting five microenterprises with legal, financial marketing and recordkeeping technical assistance     Target Date   6/30/2018   5     Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities   703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD     Planned Activities   Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201 National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
Planned Activities Matrix Code: 05 Public Services (General) 570.201(e)   National Objective: LMC Low/mod limited clientele benefit: activities th   benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income.   570.208(a)(2)   12 Project Name   Target Area Citywide   Goals Supported ED-1 Employment   Needs Addressed Economic Development Priority   Funding CDBG: \$3,000   Description Supporting job creation and economic development by assisting five microenterprises with legal, financial marketing and recordkeeping technical assistance   Target Date 6/30/2018   Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities 5 microbusinesses   Location Description 703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD   Planned Activities Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201   National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
National Objective: LMC Low/mod limited clientele benefit: activities th benefit a limited clientele, at least 51% of which are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)   12 Project Name Newtowne Community Development Corporation, Inc.   Target Area Citywide   Goals Supported ED-1 Employment   Needs Addressed Economic Development Priority   Funding CDBG: \$3,000   Description Supporting job creation and economic development by assisting five microenterprises with legal, financial marketing and recordkeeping technical assistance   Target Date 6/30/2018   Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities 5 microbusinesses   Location Description 703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD   Planned Activities Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201 National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
Image: state stat	at
12 Project Name Newtowne Community Development Corporation, Inc.   Target Area Citywide   Goals Supported ED-1 Employment   Needs Addressed Economic Development Priority   Funding CDBG: \$3,000   Description Supporting job creation and economic development by assisting five microenterprises with legal, financial marketing and recordkeeping technical assistance   Target Date 6/30/2018   Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities 5 microbusinesses   Location Description 703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD   Planned Activities Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201   National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	al
Project Name   Newtowne Community Development Corporation, Inc.     Target Area   Citywide     Goals Supported   ED-1 Employment     Needs Addressed   Economic Development Priority     Funding   CDBG: \$3,000     Description   Supporting job creation and economic development by assisting five microenterprises with legal, financial marketing and recordkeeping technical assistance     Target Date   6/30/2018     Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities   5 microbusinesses     Location Description   703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD     Planned Activities   Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201     National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
Target Area Citywide   Goals Supported ED-1 Employment   Needs Addressed Economic Development Priority   Funding CDBG: \$3,000   Description Supporting job creation and economic development by assisting five microenterprises with legal, financial marketing and recordkeeping technical assistance   Target Date 6/30/2018   Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities 5 microbusinesses   Location Description 703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD   Planned Activities Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201   National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
Goals Supported ED-1 Employment   Needs Addressed Economic Development Priority   Funding CDBG: \$3,000   Description Supporting job creation and economic development by assisting five microenterprises with legal, financial marketing and recordkeeping technical assistance   Target Date 6/30/2018   Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities 5 microbusinesses   Location Description 703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD   Planned Activities Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201   National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
Needs Addressed   Economic Development Priority     Funding   CDBG: \$3,000     Description   Supporting job creation and economic development by assisting five microenterprises with legal, financial marketing and recordkeeping technical assistance     Target Date   6/30/2018     Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities   5 microbusinesses     Location Description   703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD     Planned Activities   Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201 National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
FundingCDBG: \$3,000DescriptionSupporting job creation and economic development by assisting five microenterprises with legal, financial marketing and recordkeeping technical assistanceTarget Date6/30/2018Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities5 microbusinessesLocation Description703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MDPlanned ActivitiesMatrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201 National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
DescriptionSupporting job creation and economic development by assisting five microenterprises with legal, financial marketing and recordkeeping technical assistanceTarget Date6/30/2018Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities5 microbusinessesLocation Description703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MDPlanned ActivitiesMatrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201 National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
microenterprises with legal, financial marketing and recordkeeping technical assistance   Target Date 6/30/2018   Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities 5 microbusinesses   Location Description 703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD   Planned Activities Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201   National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
Target Date 6/30/2018   Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities 5 microbusinesses   Location Description 703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD   Planned Activities Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201 National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
Target Date 6/30/2018   Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities 5 microbusinesses   Location Description 703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD   Planned Activities Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201 National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities 5 microbusinesses   Location Description 703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD   Planned Activities Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201 National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
and type of families   that will benefit from   the proposed activities   Location Description   703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD   Planned Activities   Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201   National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise   microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o)   and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
that will benefit from   the proposed activities   Location Description 703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD   Planned Activities Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201   National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
the proposed activities     Location Description   703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD     Planned Activities   Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201     National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
Location Description   703 C Newtowne Drive, Annapolis, MD     Planned Activities   Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201     National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
Planned Activities   Matrix Code: 18C ED Micro-Enterprise Assistance 570.201     National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
National Objective: LMCMC Low/mod limited clientele, Microenterprise microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
microenterprise activities that are carried out under 24 CFR 570.201(o) and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	
and the owner(s)/developer(s) are low/mod income. 570.208(a)(2)(iii)	::
13 Project Name Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program - Construction	
Target Area Citywide	
Goals Supported HS-1 Housing Rehabilitation	
Needs Addressed Housing Priority	
Funding CDBG: \$120,000	
DescriptionContinue to provide financial assistance to low- and moderate-income	
homeowners to rehabilitate their existing owner-occupied housing by	
funding the City's Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program tha	t
provides up to \$40,000 to low-income homeowners for housing repairs	
Arundel Community Development Services, Inc. administers the progra	m
on a first come first served basis. The city provides a \$40,000 deferred	
loan without payments or interest over 15 years at which time the note	is
forgiven.	
Target Date6/30/2018	
Estimate the number 3 LMI Households	_
and type of families	
that will benefit from	
the proposed activities	
Location Description Citywide	

	Planned Activities	Matrix Code: 14A Rehab: Single-Unit Residential 570.202
	Fighted Activities	National Objective: LMH Low/mod housing benefit: activities that are
		carried out for the purpose of providing or improving permanent
		residential structures that will be occupied by low/mod income
		households. 570.208(a)(3)
14	Project Name	Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program Administration
14	Target Area	Citywide
	Goals Supported	HS-1 Housing Rehabilitation
	Needs Addressed	Housing Priority
	Funding	CDBG: \$30,000
	Description	Continue to provide financial assistance to low- and moderate-income
		homeowners to rehabilitate their existing owner-occupied housing
		through the City's Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program by
		providing funds to Arundel Community Development Services, Inc. for
		staff costs associated with administering the program for the City.
	Target Date	6/30/2017
Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from		3 LMI Households
	the proposed activities	
	Location Description	Citywide
	Planned Activities	Matrix Code: 14H Rehabilitation Administration 570.202
		National Objective: LMH Low/mod housing benefit: activities that are
		carried out for the purpose of providing or improving permanent
		residential structures that will be occupied by low/mod income
		households. 570.208(a)(3)
	Project Name	Main Street Housing
	Target Area	Citywide
	Target Area Goals Supported	Citywide SN-1 Housing
		SN-1 Housing
	Goals Supported	
	Goals Supported	SN-1 Housing
	Goals Supported Needs Addressed	SN-1 Housing Other Special Needs Priority
	Goals Supported Needs Addressed	SN-1 Housing Other Special Needs Priority
	Goals Supported Needs Addressed Funding	SN-1 Housing   Other Special Needs Priority   CDBG: \$9,000
	Goals Supported Needs Addressed Funding	SN-1 Housing   Other Special Needs Priority   CDBG: \$9,000   Increase the supply of affordable, decent, safe, sound, and accessible
	Goals Supported Needs Addressed Funding	SN-1 Housing   Other Special Needs Priority   CDBG: \$9,000   Increase the supply of affordable, decent, safe, sound, and accessible housing for the elderly, persons with disabilities, and persons with other
	Goals Supported Needs Addressed Funding	SN-1 Housing   Other Special Needs Priority   CDBG: \$9,000   Increase the supply of affordable, decent, safe, sound, and accessible housing for the elderly, persons with disabilities, and persons with other special needs through rehabilitation of existing buildings and new
	Goals Supported Needs Addressed Funding	SN-1 HousingOther Special Needs PriorityCDBG: \$9,000Increase the supply of affordable, decent, safe, sound, and accessible housing for the elderly, persons with disabilities, and persons with other special needs through rehabilitation of existing buildings and new construction by improving four residential facilities occupied by 12
	Goals Supported Needs Addressed Funding	SN-1 Housing   Other Special Needs Priority   CDBG: \$9,000   Increase the supply of affordable, decent, safe, sound, and accessible housing for the elderly, persons with disabilities, and persons with other special needs through rehabilitation of existing buildings and new construction by improving four residential facilities occupied by 12

Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities	3 persons with special needs
Location Description	Address suppressed
Planned Activities	Matrix Code: National Objective: LMC Presumed Benefit Low/mod limited clientele benefit: activities that benefit a clientele generally presumed to be principally low/mod persons. 570.208(a)(2)(i)(A)

# AP-50 Geographic Distribution – 91.220(f)

# Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low-income and minority concentration) where assistance will be directed

Because 70% of the City's CDBG funds must benefit low and moderate-income persons, the City will spend a significant portion of its CDBG funds in areas with minority and poverty concentrations. The neighborhoods that received priority attention were Eastport, Parole, and Clay Street. These neighborhoods are small, cohesive geographic areas, which have the highest minority concentration, the highest number of people below the poverty level, and the greatest housing rehabilitation needs.

## **Geographic Distribution**

#### Table 8 - Geographic Distribution

Target Area	Percentage of Funds
Citywide	100%

## Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically

The intent of Federal CDBG funds is to provide low and moderate-income households with viable communities, including decent housing, a suitable living environment, and expanded economic opportunities. Eligible activities include community facilities and improvements, housing rehabilitation and preservation, affordable housing development activities, public services, economic development, planning, and administration. The City of Annapolis has identified its priorities throughout the plan with regard to allocating investment geographically.

The City will base its selection of projects on the following criteria:

- Meets the statutory requirements of the CDBG program
- Meets the needs of LMI residents
- Focuses on low and moderate-income areas or neighborhoods
- Coordinates and leverages resources
- Responds to expressed needs
- Is sustainable and/or has long-term impact; and
- Demonstrates measurable progress and success

## Discussion

Under the FFY 2017 CDBG Program, the City of Annapolis will receive a grant for \$267,088. The City will budget \$37,363 for Public Services, \$226,725 for Capital Projects, and \$3,000 for Administration.

# AP-55 Affordable Housing – 91.220(g)

#### Introduction

The city of Annapolis will utilize its CDBG funds to rehabilitate existing affordable housing units, support the construction of new affordable housing units, and to provide down payment/closing cost assistance to facilitate housing affordability

#### Table 9 - One-Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Requirement

One Year Goals for the Number of Households to be	Supported
Homeless	0
Non-Homeless	3
Special-Needs	0
Total	3

Table 10 - One-Year	Goals for	Affordable	Housin	g by	Support	Туре

One Year Goals for the Number of Households Supported Through				
Rental Assistance	0			
The Production of New Units	0			
Rehab of Existing Units	3			
Acquisition of Existing Units	0			
Total	3			

#### Discussion

The one-year project for affordable housing funded by the city for FFY 2017 CDBG funds is as follows:

• Housing Rehabilitation - Owner Occupied Rehabilitation

# AP-60 Public Housing – 91.220(h) Introduction

The Housing Authority of the City of Annapolis (HACA) strives to provide quality, affordable housing in safe, attractive communities for eligible families, the elderly, and persons with disabilities based on need and income.

HACA has identified the following FFY 2017 PHA goals and objectives:

### FFY 2017 PHA GOALS AND OBJECTIVES:

Goal I: Revitalize and Enhance our Communities

- Improve the Physical Conditions and Marketability of each Community and coordinate services that promote self-sufficiency to improve the income base for HACA and/or to prepare residents to move out of public housing and federal assisted programs dependency. Complete
- Redevelopment of Obery Court Phase III
- Identify Funding Sources to redevelop Newtowne 20 & Morris Blum
- Continue to apply for grants to enhance safety on all properties
- Continue Safe Communities partnership with the Annapolis Police Department
- Maintain Excellent Site Curb Appeal for each Community
- Implement Non-Smoking Policy through-out HACA Communities
- Work with housing developers to increase number of housing units for low-income residents including veterans
- Enhance working relationships with the Housing Commission of Anne Arundel County, Anne Arundel County Public Schools and Anne Arundel County Government (Workforce Development)

Goal II: Continue to Improve Processes and Performance

- Establish a Business/ Community Advisory Board around program specific areas (i.e. grant writing)
- Successfully complete HUD Public Housing Recovery Plan Requirements
- Achieve High Performer status under the Public Housing Assessment System (Financial Assessment Sub-System, Management Assessment Sub-System and the Real Estate Assessment Sub System)
- Maintain High Performer status under the Section Eight Management Assessment System
- Reduce public housing Vacancy Rate
- Achieve an Occupancy rate of 98% or Higher
- Conduct 100% Annual Recertification for all Programs
- Reduce Outstanding Tenant Account Receivables
- Develop a Capital Fund Strategy to improve all identified HUD Real Estate Assessment Conditions Deficiencies
- HCVP participate base utility allowances on the lesser of the number of people in the household or the bedroom size
- Increase tenant integrity to reduce fraud for Public Housing and HCVP
- Continual training for all staff

Goal III: Promote Efficiency and Fiscal Responsibility

- Create alternate Funding opportunities to support the overall operation of all programs.
- Explore incentive programs to reduce energy consumption on all public housing properties

- Continue to manage performance targets under the Housing Choice Voucher Sequestration Financial Improvement Plan
- Maintain a Balance Budget
- Conduct Public Housing Program Flat Rent Analysis
- Conduct Annual Utility Allowances Review for all Programs
- Effectively manage the Annual Preventative Maintenance Program
- Complete Redevelopment of Obery Court Phase III-61 Units
- Improve system to obtain rent reasonableness for HCVP

Goal IV: Provide Enhanced Customer Service

- Promote participation in the ROSS Grants-Family Self Sufficiency (PTO-FSS) and Homeownership programs
- Develop a Mandatory Good Neighbor and Housekeeping Program
- Expand HCV program to include landlord fairs to create additional housing opportunities
- Implement Integrated Pest Management Programs
- Expand Program Coordinating Committee (PCC)
- Continue to expand Health Care and Wellness Programs throughout all HACA properties through Anne Arundel Medical Center
- Build partnerships with outside organizations who have services and programs which can benefit our clients (YMCA/YWCA)
- Expand stipend program to include Wellness and Resident Services
- Continue to increase internship opportunities with area colleges and university

Goal V: Identify and Implement Technology to Provide More Efficient and Effective Service to the Public

- Investigate and implement online access to Wait List status for applicants and tenants. (Goal IV)
  - Configure and implement electronic bill payments through Visual Homes, initially for utility bills and then expand to other forms of payments. (Goal II)
  - Identify two processes that can be automated and converted to paperless to increase efficiency and reduce resource consumption. (Goal III)
  - Increase utilization of Visual Homes in creating and storing documents, reducing resource utilization and increasing efficiency and effectiveness. (Goal III)
  - Handheld system for HCV inspections
  - Purchase FSS software for all Coordinators

# Actions planned during the next year to address the needs to public housing

The Housing Authority of the City of Annapolis plans to allocate the following FFY 2017 funds (Total \$1,599,373) for its public housing units:

- Operations \$280,000
- Management Improvements \$100,000
- Administration \$40,000
- Fees and Costs \$50,000
- Site Improvement \$160,000
- Dwelling Structures \$447,528
- Dwelling Equipment \$50,000
- Non-dwelling Equipment \$63,150
- Debt Service \$406,845

# Actions to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and participate in homeownership.

A major effort has been undertaken at the governing board level to focus all available community resources in a coordinated effort to benefit the maximum number of residents of all ages. A governing board function led by the newly created Community Impact Committee will spearhead and focus the efforts. Safety and security will be a major focus for all residents. Efforts to ensure mutual trust will be paramount as the programs unfold for all ages, from the children to our veterans. One individual from the Authority will have complete responsibility to oversee the total program, which they envision will bring the government, civic and faith communities together in a united effort to benefit all.

HACA strives to maintain high quality management and operation of its public housing programs and units. HACA uses various HUD-devised regulations and manuals in implementing its management and maintenance policies including Admissions and Continued Occupancy Handbook, PH Maintenance Plan Document, FSS Action Plan, Public Housing Assessment System Manual, Section 8 Administrative Plan, Housing Inspection Manual, Section 8 and Voucher Program Master Book, HUD Handbook 7420.7 and industry best practices.

HACA has resident councils at each of its developments in the City. The resident councils continue to offer input on management operations, modernization needs, family self-sufficiency programs, and the homeownership program through formal public hearings and during formation of its annual Agency Plan.

# If the PHA is designated as troubled, describe the manner in which financial assistance will be provided or other assistance

HUD has designated HACA as a troubled agency for a number of different reasons including but not limited to the physical conditions of its properties and financial status. The authority is diligently working towards improving the day-to-day operations, the financial stability, the community relationship, and the physical conditions of its properties by overhaul in management. The City has consistently supported HACA's applications to the Maryland Department of Housing and Community Development. The City has also provided financial assistance through its CDBG program.

The City of Annapolis Mayor's Office and administration work closely with HACA to ensure that the residents are receiving adequate living conditions, stronger communication, enhanced public safety, and problem-solving partnerships among the HACA administration, Board of Commissioners, the City of Annapolis administration, the Annapolis City Council and residents of HACA communities.

The City is currently working with Anne Arundel County on Project Open Space in regards to the Department Recreation and Parks tennis courts and new pool facility. This will provide many more youth programs at the recreation center. The center offers the following programs for HACA residents:

- jazz/hip hop dance class
- rock climbing lessons
- older adult walking program
- 17 and under Summer Basketball League
- floor hockey

- volleyball
- indoor soccer

The Stanton Community Center continues to serve our Clay Street corridor with many recreation and enrichment programs for both the youth and adults. Youth programs include the eight & Under Basketball League, After School Homework Club, Friday Night Out, Hungry Hands "Cooking Up Life Skills," Language, Arts & Math Program, Start the Adventure in Reading, STEM Academy, Summit School Literacy Counts Tutorial Program and the Zastro Simms Youth Basketball League. The adult programs include Anne Arundel Medical Center Outreach Clinic, Adults Basic Skills Class, Annapolis Youth Services Bureau, Stanton Community Center Computer Lab, and short and long-term life improvement counseling with We Care & Friends.

HACA has hired outside consultants (CPA firm) to establish internal control procedures within all aspects of fiscal operations, which includes the implementation of processes that address the appropriate safeguarding of HACA resources.

#### Discussion

HACA is developing an Annual and Five Year Plan to upgrade and redevelop the aging public housing communities located in the city. A letter has been submitted to HUD requesting its entire housing inventory be placed on the RAD application list. HACA is utilizing the Maryland Energy Administration as a funding source to upgrade Harbour House Apartments with new heating, ventilation and air-conditioning systems, energy-efficient appliances, and lighting.

# AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities – 91.220(i) Introduction

The City of Annapolis is a member of Anne Arundel County's Continuum of Care (CoC), which is a collaborative and well-coordinated community-based planning process. The goal of the process is to ensure the needs of persons who are homeless or at-risk of homelessness within the City and the County are being met. The CoC makes a continuum of housing and services available including prevention, outreach, and supportive services, as well as emergency, transitional, and permanent housing. ACDS, with support from the Anne Arundel County Department of Social Services (DSS), coordinates the Continuum of Care Planning Group, referred to as the Anne Arundel and Annapolis Coalition to End Homelessness (Homeless Coalition). The Homeless Coalition is responsible for developing the competitive Continuum of Care application and for developing the plan to end chronic homelessness in Anne Arundel County.

The Homeless Coalition consists of over 50 County and City of Annapolis agencies, concerned citizens, nonprofit homeless service providers, private nonprofit organizations serving special needs clientele, as well as others with interests and roles in ending homelessness in the County.

The Homeless Coalition has continually assisted ACDS in submitting successful applications for federal funds and developing new programs and services to address the needs of the homeless population. ACDS applied through HUD's 2016 federal competitive application process and was awarded a total of \$2,303,378 in competitive 2016 Continuum of Care (CoC) funds. The funds will be used to provide housing for the chronically homeless persons and families. The Homeless Coalition is in the process of strengthening the County's coalition and overall continuum of care for the homeless. Homeless Coalition members played an active role in the implementing the new Consolidated Plan FY 2016 – FY 2020, as well as providing input in the development of the FY 2018 Action Plan.

# Describe the jurisdictions one-year goals and actions for reducing and ending homelessness including reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their individual needs.

The Anne Arundel CoC has adopted a coordinated assessment system to stream line outreach procedures, thereby helping homeless persons to easily access programs. The Community Warmline, a 24-hour, seven-day crisis hotline, is the coordinated entry point and is part of the Mental Health Agency Crisis Response System. Primarily the Warmline provides referrals and links to services. The Warmline is marketed to the CoC, County agency heads, libraries, faith community, food pantries, and 211 and is advertised on multiple County websites. Individuals least likely to access services can reach the Warmline by phone. Depending on the situation, the Crisis Mobile Team must be sent to assess the situation. The initial screening process identifies basic service needs along with basic HMIS data and referral information. Individuals are referred to appropriate shelter and other services based on the assessment. Homeless persons can also enter through local shelters, DSS, and day programs. All programs use VI-SPDAT to assess needs of homeless and create a by-name vulnerability list. The CoC gives priority for shelter to homeless assessed as vulnerable and on the street or other place not fit for human habitation. The CoC is working to improve the County's coordinated assessment process and is in the process of developing a single point of entry for the County's shelters and emergency services.

The County's continuum for the homeless has several outreach teams including the Homeless Outreach Team, the Crisis Response Team, and two Assertive Community Treatment (ACT) Programs. The Homeless Outreach Team funded with \$25,000 in CDBG funds works to build relationships with individuals living in homeless camps throughout the County in order to link them to services and housing. One ACT Program team is part of a newly funded mental health grant and specifically targets the chronically homeless. The ACT Program receives referrals from the police, hospitals, and shelters when a homeless person is in crisis. In addition, Arundel House of Hope (AHOH) and The Light House provide outreach services and provide case management, day shelter, meals, and links to mainstream resources. The CoC also hosts an annual Homeless Resource Day, which allows service providers to successfully reach out to the homeless and those at-risk of homelessness. This event is well publicized to the entire community. The Homeless Resource Day, offering comprehensive services, allows service providers to offer their services in a concentrated manner on one day, as well as to set up appointments for follow-up visits.

# Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons

Emergency Shelter – Anne Arundel County has 53 year round and 85 seasonal emergency shelter beds for individuals, and 99 year round emergency beds for families. Typically, emergency shelters provide temporary housing for up to 90 days, along with three meals, case management, life skills, training, housing search assistance, and other support services. The rotating church shelter, called the Winter Relief Program, provides transportation, meals, and temporary housing between the hours of 5:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. from November through April. An additional 54 freezing weather beds are provided by local shelters and the City of Annapolis. There are a total of 88 year round, seasonal, or overflow freezing weather beds available for chronically homeless persons in the County.

In Local Fiscal Year 2018, Sarah's House, operated by Associated Catholic Charities, Inc., will receive \$85,000 in Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funds from the County. Sarah's House provides emergency shelter to the County's homeless population, as well as a wide array of supportive services. It is estimated that 425 homeless persons, including children, will be assisted by Sarah's House during the next year. The City will apply for ESG funds for the Light House Shelter in June 2017 and expects a similar award of approximately \$128,000, which it received last year.

Transitional Housing – The county lost funding for all of its CoC funded transitional housing programs – Sarah's House, Anchor House, and the Fouse Center – in the FY2016 CoC Competition, although, the housing units were not lost as the Housing Commission of Anne Arundel County has made available project-based housing choice vouchers to continue the operation of these programs. Additionally, the Mental Health Agency has provided AHOH County funds for \$100,000 to continue to provide housing and supportive services to chronically homeless men at the Fouse Center. In Local Fiscal Year 2018, AHOH will provide a transitional housing program for six homeless veterans - Patriot House - and will continue to provide four transitional housing units for homeless families.

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were recently homeless from becoming homeless again

The CoC is committed to ending chronic homelessness by outreaching and developing housing options for this population. The Homeless Coalition has embraced the Housing First Model as its strategy for ending chronic homelessness. As part of the development of a Coordinated Assessment process, the Homeless Coalition adopted VI-SPDAT as its assessment tool and incorporated it into the HMIS system. The VI-SPDAT is a nationally accepted and recommended survey tool, which evaluates and ranks each homeless individual or family based on a number of risk factors and generates a centralized list of most vulnerable, chronically homeless individuals and families. Those who are ranked as the most vulnerable and chronically homeless are given priority for all of the HUD funded permanent supportive housing programs and other services. The centralized list is a coordinated waitlist for all HUD funded permanent housing programs.

The County uses a rapid re-housing strategy for homeless families and provides Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funded rapid re-housing to approximately 10 families per year. The City also provides funding for rapid re-housing with the ESG funds received from the state. Additionally, the County received a new FY2016 CoC funded rapid re-housing grant to re-house approximately eight homeless families per year. The County is allocating \$112,500 in HOME and County funds for a tenant based rental assistance program to house homeless families. Additionally, the United Way of Central Maryland has funded a prevention and diversion program, including a rapid –rehousing strategy, for families. The rapid re-housing strategy is limited by the availability of funds. The family shelters also work to help families increase their incomes so that they can find housing. Given the high cost of housing, many homeless families stay with other family members after they leave shelter.

The CoC seeks to end homelessness among veterans as well. AHOH operates Patriot House, a Veteran's Administration (VA) per diem funded transitional housing program for homeless veterans. AHOH works closely with the Baltimore VA Medical Center to ensure each veteran receives necessary medical care, services, and access to permanent housing (through the HUD VASH program). Many graduates of the program improve their income enough to afford unsubsidized housing as well. Additionally, outreach workers from the Baltimore VA Medical Center come to the AHOH Homeless Resource Center on a monthly basis to link homeless veterans to services.

Shelter staff works to reduce recidivism. Currently, approximately 35 percent of sheltered homeless experience more than one episode of homelessness and return to shelter. This is due in part to the high cost of housing in Anne Arundel County and the difficulty of low-income individuals finding units they can afford without a subsidy. Those who enter CoC funded permanent housing seldom return to emergency shelters. The following strategies are used to reduce returns to homelessness: (1) provide comprehensive case management and continued aftercare service once a participant leaves; (2) build linkage to all mainstream resources; and (3) focus on increasing employment and income by ensuring the homeless are linked to employment services or receive all benefits, such as SSI, for which they may be eligible.

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely low-income individuals and families and those who are: being discharged from publicly funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care facilities, mental health facilities, foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions); or, receiving assistance from public or private agencies that address housing, health, social services, employment, education, or youth needs. The key strategy for ending homelessness is to prevent individuals from becoming homeless in the first place. A number of local agencies assist households in avoiding homelessness by providing financial assistance to prevent eviction, as well as to help with preventing the disconnection of utilities. The County uses CDBG, FEMA, State, and private funds to provide this assistance. Additionally, the United Way has funded a prevention and homeless diversion program. In Local Fiscal Year 2018, the County will allocate \$40,000 in CDBG funds to Anne Arundel County Community Action Agency and \$25,000 in CDBG funds to Calvary Economic Development Corporation to provide eviction prevention, utility turn-off and help with first month's rent. Additionally, the County has made available \$90,000 in flexible funding to support the Anne Arundel County Mental Health Agency to provide short-term, emergency housing, eviction prevention, and other needed housing assistance to individuals to maintain and potentially obtain housing.

The County has developed discharge plans and strategies, depending on the population being served, to prevent individuals being discharged from a publicly funded institution – such as foster care, hospitals, mental health programs, and or jail – from becoming homeless. The Department of Social Services (DSS) is responsible for implementing discharge planning for children in foster care. The County's goal is to make sure every child has a permanent supportive connection before aging out of care.

Although there are no publically funded hospitals or health care facilities in the County, the two privately funded hospitals have agreed to work with DSS to help ensure individuals leaving these facilities are not released to homelessness. Both the Baltimore/Washington Medical Center and the Anne Arundel Medical Center, employs social workers to link patients to services prior to discharge. The inpatient hospital treatment team completes a needs assessment upon entry into the facility and develops a treatment plan that addresses needs such as mental health, housing, substance abuse, job skills, and life skills. Anne Arundel County Mental Health Agency also employs aftercare service workers who provide the local link between psychiatric hospitals, residential treatment facilities and community resources to ensure effective discharge planning.

The Health General Article, 10-809 Annotated Code of Maryland, prohibits discharges from state mental health facilities to homelessness. The County makes every effort to prevent individuals exiting the County Detention Centers from becoming homeless on discharge. The Detention Centers provide case management, including discharge planning, to all individuals sentenced for a time of greater than seven days in either of the County's two detention facilities. Detainees are referred to internal GED training; job training, drug treatment, and other life skills type courses in order to prepare for their exit from the detention center. Mentally ill detainees are referred to the State funded Mental Health Jail Project, which link inmates to services and housing upon discharge from the jail. The Detention Center hosts on-site Community Service Fairs to help link in-mates to programs, services, and housing options upon release.

# Discussion

The City has allocated CDBG funds to the following FFY 2017 economic development and anti-poverty programs to address the other special needs and homeless needs:

- Arundel Lodge
- Main Street Housing
- Community Action Agency
- Center of Help Referral and Information

- Light House Shelter Case Management
- OIC Job Preparation Training
- Restoration Community Development Corporation Mentoring Project
- Samaritan House Counseling
- Newtowne CDC Microenterprise
- Housing Rehabilitation Owner Occupied Rehabilitation

The County has been successful at applying for competitive CoC funds and has built an inventory of 168 permanent supportive housing beds, most targeted to chronically homeless. During Local Fiscal Year 2018, the County will offer the following housing programs to the homeless. All of these housing programs will provide intensive case management and supportive services.

CHES Housing Program - \$103,160 in COC funds was awarded for a new program to provide tenant based rental assistance to eight chronically homeless persons diagnosed with a mental illness.

Catholic Charities Rapid Re-Housing Program - \$139,510 in CoC funds was awarded to Catholic Charities for a new program to provide rapid re-housing to homeless families.

Housing for Chronically Homeless Families - \$60,000 in HOME and \$52,000 in County general funds is provided to the Housing Commission to house 10 chronically homeless families.

AHOH Rapid Re-Housing Program – \$64,524 in ESG funds is provided to Arundel House of Hope, Inc. (AHOH) to help 10 homeless families.

Women in Safe Haven (WISH) Program – AHOH was awarded \$59,073 in CoC funds to operate the WISH Program that provides permanent supportive housing for five chronically homeless women.

Safe Haven I – AHOH was awarded \$56,396 in CoC funds to provide permanent supportive housing to four chronically homeless men.

Safe Haven II – AHOH was awarded \$59,231 in CoC funds to provide permanent supportive housing to four chronically homeless men.

Community Housing Program – AHOH was awarded \$58,814 in CoC funds to provide permanent supportive housing to six chronically homeless men and women.

Housing First I – People Encouraging People, Inc. (PEP) was awarded \$65,712 in CoC funds to provide tenant based rental assistance and intensive case management services to five chronically homeless persons.

Housing First II – PEP was awarded \$119,828 in CoC funds to provide tenant based rental assistance and intensive case management services to eight chronically homeless persons.

Supportive Housing Opportunity Program (SHOP) – The Anne Arundel Mental Health Agency was awarded \$198,727 in CoC funds to provide tenant based rental assistance and intensive support services for eight homeless households.

Samaritan Housing Program – The Mental Health Agency was awarded for \$65,643 in CoC funds to provide five tenant based rental subsidies and supportive services to chronically homeless individuals.

Shelter Plus Care – The Maryland Mental Hygiene Administration was awarded \$412,855 in CoC funds to continue the Shelter Plus Care Program providing tenant based rental assistance and supportive services to 26 homeless households.

Permanent Supportive Housing Program – The Housing Commission of Anne Arundel County was awarded \$391,501 to provide 25 rental vouchers and supportive services for chronically homeless households.

Anne Arundel Partnership for Permanent Housing Program – ACDS was awarded \$467,837 in CoC funds to administer a permanent housing program, which is operated through a partnership between the Housing Commission, AHOH, and Community Residences, Inc. The Program serves participants who are chronically homeless and provides intensive case management and supportive services to 25 households, including children.

Finally, Catholic Charities will provide 20 units of affordable housing to homeless families at the former Sarah's House Transitional Housing program site at Ft. Meade, the Light House will provide three units of permanent housing to homeless families, and AHOH will provide 8 beds of affordable housing with intensive supports to chronically homeless men. These programs will be funded through the Housing Commissions Housing Choice Voucher program. After a year, upon exit from these programs, each homeless household will receive a mainstream tenant based voucher and be able to move into market rate housing in a community of choice.

The County will also continue to address the housing needs of other special needs population, such as those with diagnosed with HIV/AIDs, the disabled, and elderly. At a minimum, the following actions will be taken in Local Fiscal Year 2018: (i) one unit will be acquired through the CHDO Housing Acquisition/Rehab Program; (ii) 35 households will be assisted through the Housing Commission's HOPWA funded Rental Assistance Program; (iii) three homes will be modified for persons with disabilities through the CDBG funded Accessibility Modification Program; and (ii) two group homes will be rehabilitated through the Group Home Rehabilitation Program.

# AP-75 Barriers to Affordable Housing – 91.220(j) Introduction:

In recognition of the financial barriers that limit affordable housing opportunities among low-income households, the City of Annapolis has devised a strategy for expanding housing opportunities as follows:

- Offer closing cost and mortgage write-down assistance through a First Time Homebuyer Program. All participants in the program are required to attend homeownership-counseling classes that educate first-time homebuyers on the mechanics of the home purchase process including budgeting, resolving credit issues, and negotiating the contract. The City has used CDBG funds to support the Housing Counseling Program at the Community Action Agency, which has HUD-certified instructors. ACDS, also, HUD certified, provides homeownershipcounseling services to City residents.
- Provide assistance with improvements through its Housing Rehabilitation Program, ACDS administers for Annapolis.
- Continue to work with nonprofit housing providers providing assistance with acquisition and rehabilitation of units sold to low and moderate income first-time homebuyers.
- Provide funds to the Community Action Agency to support the agency's Homeownership Counseling Program that educates first-time homebuyers on the mechanics of the home purchase process including budgeting, resolving credit issues, and negotiating the contract. HUD certified instructors teach the program. Successful completion of the program is required from all households receiving assistance from the City through its homeownership programs. CAA's counselors are also available to assist renters.
- Continue the Moderately Priced Dwelling Unit (MPDU) Program that is applicable to developments containing ten or more dwelling units. The MPDU requires that at least 12% of the units in for-sale residential developments, and at least six percent of the units in for-rent residential developments, be affordable to households at 80% of the median income for the MSA. To ensure the long-term affordability of the units, for-sale units require affordability controls for up to 10 years from initial occupancy and for-rent units require 20 years. In exchange for the set-aside, the City permits a density bonus beyond the minimum density in the zone. The density bonus is 15% in for-sale housing and 10% in for-rent housing. The City adopted the MPDU ordinance in 2004. The city currently has 18 rental MPDUs, one for sale MPDU, and development applications before the City have the potential to create 45 affordable for-sale units. MPDU represents a considerable effort by the City to expand affordable housing stock through the private market.
- The City's Fair Housing Ordinance is equivalent to both the state and federal law. The City added the following protected classes to its Fair Housing Ordinance: disability, familial status, sexual orientation, marital status, sex, lawful income.
- The City also participates as a member of the Anne Arundel Affordable Housing Coalition, and the Anne Arundel Continuum of Care Planning Group, which are responsible for funding

decisions that affect residents of Annapolis. The City of Annapolis has a Human Relations Commission, which enforces the fair housing law and handles formal complaints. The Human Relations Commission continues to provide information on fair housing in their public events. There are no court orders, consent decrees, or sanctions against the City of Annapolis from HUD or any other organization regarding housing and related services. The City of Annapolis will continue to promote, foster, and maintain affordable housing throughout the city.

# Actions it planned to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve as barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the return on residential investment

The city of Annapolis updated its Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice in conjunction with the preparation of the Five Year Consolidated Plan. The city of Annapolis' FFY 2015-2019 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice has identified the following impediments, along with the goals and strategies to address those impediments. Impediment #2 addresses public policies and regulations.

**Impediment 1: FAIR HOUSING EDUCATION AND OUTREACH** – There is a need to educate members of the community concerning their rights and responsibilities under the Fair Housing Act and to raise awareness, especially for low-income households, that all residents of the city have a right under federal law to fair housing choice.

Goal: Improve the public's knowledge and awareness of the Federal Fair Housing Act, and related laws, regulations, and requirements to affirmatively further fair housing in the city. Strategies: In order to meet this goal, the following activities and strategies should be undertaken:

- 1-A: Continue to promote Fair Housing awareness through the media and with assistance from local/regional social service agencies, by providing educational awareness/opportunities for all persons to learn more about their rights and requirements under the Fair Housing Act and Americans with Disabilities Act.
- 1-B: Continue to make available and distribute literature and informational material, in English and Spanish, concerning fair housing issues, an individual's rights, and landlord's responsibilities to affirmatively further fair housing.
- 1-C: Improve the information on the city's website about whom to contact and how to file a fair housing complaint, as well as general Fair Housing information for homeowners and renters.
- 1-D: Strive for better intergovernmental cooperation between federal, state, county, and local partners, as well as community groups and developers, to effectively identify and address potential barriers to affordable housing choice.
- 1-E: Continue to support the efforts of the city's Human Relations Commission.

**Impediment 2: PUBLIC POLICIES AND REGULATIONS** – The city's Zoning Code needs additional definitions, provisions, and revisions to be compliant with the Federal Fair Housing Act, Section 504, and the Americans with Disabilities Act to affirmatively further fair housing.

Goal: Revise the city Zoning Code to affirmatively further fair housing. Strategies: In order to meet this goal, the following activities and strategies should be undertaken:

• 2-A: The Planning and Zoning Department should review the existing ordinances and zoning

regulations for compliance with the Fair Housing Act, as amended.

• 2-B: Revise the definitions and add new definitions for the words: "Family," Handicap (Disabled)," "Fair Housing Act," "Accessibility," "Visitability," etc.

**Impediment 3: CONTINUING NEED FOR AFFORDABLE AND ACCESSIBLE HOUSING UNITS** – The cost of rent for apartments in the city has increased over the past ten years to the point that 50.6% of all renter households in Annapolis are paying more than 30% of their monthly incomes on the cost of their housing and 35.4% of owner households with a mortgage in Annapolis are paying more than 30% of their monthly incomes on the cost of their housing, which means that these households are considered cost overburdened.

Goal: Promote and encourage the construction and development of additional affordable rental and owner occupied housing units in the area, especially for households whose income is less than 80% of the median income.

- 3-A: Support and encourage both private developers and non-profit housing providers to develop plans for the construction of new affordable and accessible renter occupied and owner occupied housing that would be located in areas that provide access to employment opportunities, transportation, amenities, and services throughout the region.
- 3-B: Support and encourage the rehabilitation of existing housing units in the city to become decent, safe, and sound renter occupied and owner occupied housing that is affordable and accessible to lower income households.
- 3-C: The Housing Authority of the city of Annapolis should collaborate with private and nonprofit housing developers to continue to construct affordable rental housing utilizing Low Income Housing Tax Credits and other financing tools through federal, state, and local units of government.
- 3-D: Continue to enforce the ADA and Fair Housing requirements for landlords to make "reasonable accommodations" to their rental properties so they become accessible to tenants who are disabled, as well as educating the disabled how to request special accommodations.

**Impediment 4: PRIVATE LENDING AND INSURANCE PRACTICES** – The Home Mortgage Disclosure Act (HMDA) data suggests that there is a disparity between the approval rates of home mortgage loans originated from White and those originated from Minority applicants.

Goal: Approval rates for all originated home mortgage loans and insurance coverage should be fair, risk based, unbiased, and impartial, regardless of race, familial status, and location.

• 4-A: Federal, state, local, and private funding should be used to provide a higher rate of public financial assistance to potential homebuyers in lower income neighborhoods to improve loan to value ratios, so that private lenders will increase the number of loans made in these areas.

# AP-85 Other Actions – 91.220(k) Introduction:

The city of Annapolis has developed the following actions to address the following city needs: obstacles to meeting underserved needs; fostering affordable housing; reducing lead-based hazards; reducing the number of families living in poverty; developing institutional structures; and enhancing coordination between public and private housing and social service agencies.

## Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs

Despite city and service provider efforts, there remain a significant number of obstacles to meeting underserved needs. The following are obstacles to meeting those needs in Annapolis.

- High cost of housing
- Growing gap between incomes and housing
- Lack of developable land
- Increasing physical and mental handicap housing needs
- Cycle of poverty

#### Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing

To foster and maintain affordable housing, the city of Annapolis proposes to carry out the following activities:

- Samaritan House Facility Rehabilitation
- Arundel Lodge Facility Rehabilitation
- Housing Rehabilitation Owner Occupied Rehabilitation
- Main Street Housing Facility Rehabilitation

#### Actions planned to reduce lead-based paint hazards

The city of Annapolis will undertake activities to reduce the number of lead-based paint hazards in the city through the city's Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program. The Housing Rehabilitation Program is administered by Arundel Community Development Services, Inc. (ACDS). The city and ACDS will adhere to the following lead based paint hazard reduction policies and procedures:

- The guidelines for the city's Housing Rehabilitation Program comply with the lead based paint hazards at 24 CFR Part 35.
- ACDS staff test for lead contamination and include the containment of lead paint in all housing rehabilitation activities. Lead paint hazard reduction is an eligible rehabilitation activity funded by the Housing Rehabilitation Program.
- ACDS has a certified firm for testing, risk assessment, and clearance. All contractors are lead based paint abatement certified.
- ACDS staff includes information regarding lead paint contamination in all its community outreach efforts.
- The Anne Arundel County Health Department keeps current with changing regulations and

keeps updated lists of firms certified in testing and abatement of lead-based paint hazards.

## Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families

According to the 2007-2011 American Community Survey, approximately 10.7% of Annapolis' residents live in poverty. Female-headed households with children are particularly affected by poverty at 33.4%. Additionally, 19.4% of city residents under the age of 18 live in poverty.

To address poverty, the city will continue to work with the County to pursue resources and innovative partnerships to support the development of affordable housing, rental assistance, homelessness prevention, emergency food and shelter, health care, children's services, job training and employment development, and transportation. Through the methods described above, the city can positively influence the likelihood of poverty-stricken residents of moving up and out of poverty. Annapolis can reduce the number of residents living in poverty by minimizing threats to individual and family financial stability and by extending services that will provide adequately for those in need. Ultimately, federal and state policies on welfare, health care, and the minimum wage are crucial factors in the fight to address and reduce poverty.

Planned economic development and anti-poverty programs include:

- Blessed in Tech Counseling
- Center of Help Referral and Information
- Light House Shelter Case Management
- OIC Job Preparation Training
- Restoration Community Development Corporation Mentoring Project
- Samaritan House Counseling
- Community Action Agency Counseling
- Organization of Hispanic/Latin Americans of Anne Arundel County (OHLA) Referral and Information
- Newtowne CDC Microenterprise
- Housing Rehabilitation Owner Occupied Rehabilitation

# Actions planned to develop institutional structure

The Department of Planning and Zoning Community Development Division is the lead agency for the City's CDBG Program. The Department receives guidance from the City's Housing and Community Development Committee to administer the CDBG grant. The Department of Planning and Zoning also applies for and administers other funding sources, ensuring efficient integration and administration of all resources. The Department is responsible for the following:

- Program management and oversight
- Inter-Department/Agency Coordination
- Subrecipient contract administration and monitoring
- Program evaluation
- Report preparation and submission
- Public education and participation
- Special project development

- Consolidated Plan preparation, monitoring, and evaluation
- Housing programs
- Community Revitalization Initiatives
- Planning for development, redevelopment, community development and historic preservation
- Administration of the City's zoning ordinance and subdivision regulations including the Moderately Priced Dwelling Units Ordinance
- Manages code enforcement and environmental oversight

Other City agencies that participate with housing, community development, and economic development in Annapolis are:

- Department of Recreation and Parks The Stanton Community Center is located in the Clay Street neighborhood offers community service programs.
- Housing and Community Development Committee The Committee oversees all the housing and community development activities in the City. The Committee has seven members, including the members of the Aldermanic Housing and Human Welfare Committee, the Chair of the Housing Authority or his/her designee, and three residents who have a demonstrated interest in advancing housing and community development activities in the City. These members recommend all CDBG projects to the City Council before they are included in the annual Action Plan.
- Anne Arundel County The County provides and shares resources and programs with the City.

Various human services providers, including the Anne Arundel County Continuum of Care, Departments of Social Services, Aging and Disabilities, Health and the Partnership for Children, Youth, and Families, coordinate community development and supportive service programs with the City.

The City will continue to support the coordinated housing and community approach through the following goal and projects:

- Overall Coordination Provide program management and oversight for the successful administration of Federal, state, and local funded programs, including planning services for special studies, environmental clearance, fair housing, and compliance with all Federal, state, and local laws and regulations.
- Housing Rehabilitation Administration
- Baltimore Neighborhoods Fair Housing

# Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service agencies

The Community Development Department will continue to act as a coordinator between housing and social service activities provided by the City and activities provided by the Housing Authority, the Continuum of Care, private and non-profit housing providers, and social service agencies to address the housing and community development needs of the City. The Department will accomplish this coordination by continuing to attend various public and private housing and social service agencies meetings and conference calls, participating in planning correspondence, and providing technical assistance for funding match options and program compliance.

#### **Discussion:**

The City has identified the following projects to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs, foster and maintain affordable housing, evaluate and reduce lead-based paint hazards, reduce the number of poverty-level families, develop institutional structure, and enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service agencies:

Center of Help - Referral and Information Light House Shelter - Case Management OIC - Job Preparation Training OHLA- Referral and Information Arundel Lodge – Special needs housing Main Street Housing – Special Needs Housing Community Action Agency- Housing Counseling Restoration Community Development Corporation - Mentoring Project Samaritan House – Counseling Samaritan House – Facility Rehabilitation Newtowne CDC - Microenterprise Housing Rehabilitation - Owner Occupied Rehabilitation Housing Rehabilitation Administration

# AP-90 Program Specific Requirements – 91.220(I)(1,2,4)

#### Introduction:

The city of Annapolis receives an annual allocation of CDBG funds. Since the city receives these federal allocations, the questions below have been completed, as they are applicable.

# Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) Reference 24 CFR 91.220(I)(1)

Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the Projects Table. The following identifies program income that is available for use that is included in projects to be carried out.

Total Program Income:	\$18,000
5. The amount of income from float-funded activities	0
has not been included in a prior statement or plan	0
4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned use	
3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements	0
plan.	0
year to address the priority needs and specific objectives identified in the grantee's strategic	
2. The amount of proceeds from section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during the	
next program year and that has not yet been reprogrammed	\$18,000
1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start of the	

# **Other CDBG Requirements**

1. The amount of urgent need activities	0
2. The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that benefit	
persons of low and moderate-income persons	
Overall Benefit - A consecutive period of one, two, or three years may be used to	
determine that a minimum overall benefit of 70% of CDBG funds is used to benefit	
persons of low and moderate income. Specify the years covered that include this	
Annual Action Plan.	100%

#### Discussion:

Under the FFY 2017 CDBG Program, the City of Annapolis expects to receive \$249,088 in entitlement funding. The City will budget \$37,363 in Public Services (15%), \$226,725 for Capital Projects (84%) and \$3,000 (1%) for Administration - Fair Housing. The percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that benefit low- and moderate-income persons over the next year is 100%.

# APPENDIX

The following are included in the appendix:

- 1. SF 424 Form
- 2. Certifications
- 3. Citizen Participation